


(H) Do all other things necessary and appropriate to carry out the
duties and responsibilities of the Alliance in governing, managing
and operating the Founding Hospitals.

97. Under the Agreement, the Health Alliance developed, administered, and
managed strategic and financial plans for TCH, and TCH continued to exercise ultimate
responsibility for fulfilling its obligations.

98.  As aresult of the Agreement, the empioyees of TCH were Health Alliance
employees.

99. From its inception, the Health Alliance favored TCH as its flagship hospital
and diverted resources from its other hospitals for the benefit of TCH.

100. The Heaith Alliance operated under the complete control and domination
of the Health Alliance Chief Executive Officer, Kenneth Hanover.

101. After the creation of the Health Alliance, TCH administrators (who were
also Health Alliance employees) continued to generate and publish the schedules for
panel time at the Heart Station.

C. Creation of Ohio Heart

102. In the early 1990s, the leading cardioclogy practice group at TCH was
Cincinnati Heart and Vascular ("CH&V"). Its members included Kereiakes, Abbottsmith,
and Thomas M. Broderick, M.D.

103. Cardiac procedures and testing were and are the fargest single source of
income for TCH, and CH&V dominated the practice of cardiology at TCH. Because of
the large amount of revenue it generated for TCH, CH&V had inordinate leverage with
TCH and, as a resuit, received favored treatment from TCH (and eventually the Heaith

Alliance).
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104. For example, CH&V was allocated a majority of the “panel time” in the
Heart Station and received larger shares of preferred “"block” time in the cardiac
catheterization taboratory {the “Cath Lab"). Dr. Abbottsmith of CH&Y was also TCH's
Director of the Cath Lab at this time and, in this capacity, oversaw this apportionment of
block time.

105. Kereiakes and Abbottsmith wanted even more leverage to wield at TCH
and in the Cincinnati health care community. They decided that they would have
greater bargaining power if their group absorbed other cardiology groups and
monopolized cardiology in Cincinnati.

106. In 1995, at the urging of Kereiakes and Abbottsmith, four other Cincinnati
cardiology practice groups merged with CH&V to form Ohio Heart. Since 1995, Ohio
Heart has recruited additional cardiologists. Forty cardiovascular physicians and
surgeons are now members of Ohio Heart.

107. Because of the revenue generated by Ohio Heart, as well as Ohio Heart's
growing power and influence in the Cincinnati healthcare community, TCH acquiesced
to Ohio Heart's desire to further solidify its domination of the practice of cardiclogy at
TCH. TCH’'s acquiescence to Ohio Heart aliowed the Health Alliance to increase its
largest source of income and thus allowed TCH to retain its favored status with the
Health Alliance.

108. Upon the creation of Ohio Heart, Abbottsmith became its first President
and CEO. At this time, Abbottsmith was also President of MDA, Chief of the Section of

Cardiology of TCH, Director of the Cath Lab, and Director of the Heart Station at TCH.
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109. Relator complained to the Chief of Operations at TCH and of
Cardiovascular Operations for the Health Alliance that Abbottsmith had a conflict of
interest in assuming all of these roles at one time, but the complaint was ignored.

110. Cardiologists that did not join Ohio Heart felt threatened by the merger
and by Ohio Heart's clout with TCH and the Health Alliance.

111. Ohio Heart began to bill itself as “Greater Cincinnati’s largest cardiology
practice and one of just a few practices in the nation which includes the entire spectrum
of specialties in cardiovascular disease, including surgery.”

112. Ohio Heart became the largest cardiology practice at The Christ Hospital.
Between 75% and 80% of all cardiology billings at The Christ Hospital emanated from
Ohio Heart. Thus, because of its domination of cardiology, the procedures and testing
performed by Ohio Heart became and continue to be the largest single source of
income for TCH and the Health Alliance.

113. Since its inception, Ohio Heart has placed a high value on access to new
patients and has rewarded its physicians for acquiring new patients. Domination of the
panel time at TCH Heart Station has provided Ohio Heart physicians with direct and
lucrative access to new patients.

114. Once created, Ohio Heart dominated MDA and Chio Heart physicians
comprised a majority of the active shareholders of MDA. The interests of MDA
physicians who were not members of Ohio Heart were subjugated to the interests of
Ohio Heart both within MDA and at TCH.

115. Ohio Heart remains the dominant cardiology practice group at TCH.

Cardiovascular Services was and is one of the most profitable service areas provided at
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TCH, and TCH and the Health Alliance became even more dependant on satisfying
Ohio Heart's demands.

116. In January 2002, Thomas Ivey, M.D., and Donald Mitts, M.D., joined Ohio
Heart. Drs. lvey and Mitts were the two primary cardiovascular surgeons practicing at
TCH. In July 2003, Dr, Mitts was named Chief of Cardiothoracic Surgery at TCH. This
led to even more dominance of cardiology at TCH by Ohio Heart, and further cemented
TCH’s dependence on Ohio Heart and Ohio Heart's influence over TCH. Between Drs.
Mitts and Abbottsmith, Ohio Heart physicians controlled, directed, and oversaw all
aspects of cardiology and cardiothoracic surgery at TCH.

D. Defendants Create, Perpetrate, and Cover-Up an lllegal Kickback Scheme

117. Heart Station panel time was assigned to physicians by TCH and the
Heaith Alliance based upon the volume of referrals from the physician to TCH for
lucrative cardiac procedures such as cardiac catheterizations and angioplasties. The
more patients a physician referred to TCH for procedures, the more he was rewarded
with additional panel! time at the Heart Station.

118. This system of panel time allocation was designed to favor Ohio Heart.
Chio Heart was aware that its panel time was based upon the volume of its referrals to
TCH. (The other, non-Ohio Heart MDA physicians were not made aware of the criteria
for panel time allocation.} Because Ohio Heart referred the most patients to TCH, Ohio
Heart received the vast majority of the panel time each year.

119. Because physicians were rewarded for referrals to TCH, the system of
Heart Station panel assignment violated the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-

7b(b).
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120. By the fall of 1999, the non-Ohio Heart MDA physicians were increasingly
frustrated with the assignment of panel time, and had never been informed as to how
panel time was assigned.

121. tn late summer or early fall of 1999, Michael Jennings, M.D., Director of
the Department of internal Medicine at TCH, fold Relator that he had been at a meeting
in which lawyers for TCH and the Health Alliance had informed hospital administrators,
including Richard Seim, that TCH’s method used to assign Heart Station panel time
was illegal and that it should be discontinued. Seim was both the Senior Executive
Officer ("SEQ”") at TCH and the Senior Vice President for the Health Alliance.

122. Concerned with the assignment of panel time, non-Ohio Heart MDA
physicians, including Relator, asked to meet with TCH administrators, who were all
Health Alliance employees, to discuss how panel time was being assigned.

123. In October or November 1999, Relator and a few other non-Ohio Heart
MDA physicians met with Richard Seim and Susan Weitholter. As both the SEQO at
TCH and the Senior Vice President for the Health Alliance, Seim closely oversaw the
administration of the Heart Station panel allocation. Weitholter was Vice President of
Patient Services at TCH and oversaw the Heart Station administratively,

124. Seim and Weitholter told the physicians that they did not know how panel
time was allotted and that they had “inherited” the system for panel time allotment from
earlier administrators. This was not true. Seim and Weitholter actively participated in
the assignment of panel time. Moreover, Seim had been informed only weeks earlier

that the methods used were illegal.
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E. Relator Attempts to End the lllegal Kickback Scheme

125. Throughout this time, the Section of Cardiology at TCH held business
meetings on a monthly basis to discuss general issues of concern. These meetings
were typically attended by MDA physicians, nurses, and Health Alliance and TCH
administrators. Having learned that the administration was knowingly assigning panel
time in the Heart Station in an illegal manner, Relator decided to address this issue at
the next meeting of the Section of Cardiology.

126. At the December 14, 1999, Section of Cardiology business meeting,
Relator requested that all non-physicians leave the room to discuss the matter of panel
assignment, with the exception of Kathy Powell, a TCH nurse who took minutes of the
meeting. Various physician members of MDA remained in attendance at this meeting,
including Drs. Abbottsmith and Broderick, and several other Ohio Heart physicians.

127. Relator informed the other physicians that he had been told that the
current method of panel assignment was against the law, that Mr. Seim was aware that
the system was illegal, and that Dr. Jennings had told him that TCH’s lawyers had
informed TCH administration that the system was illegal. The physicians selected an
ad hoc committee, to be headed by Relator, in order to propose an alternate method of
assigning panel time. Relevant portions of the minutes from this December 14, 1999

meeting are set forth below:
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Following the presentations ul'the Cardiology tnvasive Meeting, and ofier ither issues were discussed in
the Ganeral Business Meeting. Dr. Harry Fry vequesied all non-physiciuns to leave the room ar this point
{with czeeprion uf Kathy Powcll - 1o [ake minures) so forther discvasion of Hearr Sranon Panel wpic could
be discussed. Tn the prive meeling, much discussion wis had with members af the Cardiotogy Section and
members of adininstratgn (Sosan Wietholter gnd Murk McDonald) regarding the hospital s carrety phan
for the Heart Station Panet snd the criteria used for sclection of panel members and ather isvuss of same
tpic.

Mingzes of Meeting/General Discussion:

i, Fry opened the meeting vecing his opimon regarding wha needs 0 make the deciston for the 1leun
Statiwn Panel: the gdrmmsuaton or the Cordiofogy Sectinn and héw much influgnce should we (Cardiclogy
Sechon) have™ Some physiciins teal the sunent prapusul oy the panet ix haing fureed an the physicians
and have thus lost conuol.

Discossian;

Dr. Broderick asked other phyaicians what intluence they huve in other hospitals.

D, Jenike responded: ot Deaconess, the Deparimant Medrcal Directer makes the decision

Other haspital, Guud Samgritan, St Frapcis!St. Geurpa- thie hospital makes dacision.

Dr. Rerzng physicians don't know the busis on winch the decisions (for the panaf}were made.

Or. Broderck: we can't el Thy haeniobe miba sl oo o oo 2 - 0

Discussion:

Dr Blgrzng what is 1he mativatcn for changing the sysiem?

Or. vy Afier talking with Dr Jenamgs. the current pregesal is spainst the faw. Dick Seim alsa ol lum
the cuprent sysiein is agoinst the faw angd haas (1 he eeplaced. Dr, Fry stated Mike Jeanings said the lawyers
1old nim rhe current system i illegal. 17 somegne chailenges this w will not siangd up ip court.

128. On December 29, 1999, Relator sent a letter to Richard Seim, TCH's SEO

and the Health Alliance’s Senior Vice President. Relevant portions of the letter read:

Dear Mt. Seim:

The Section of Cardivlogy met ext December 14, 1999, and discussed the issue of assignment of
roster readings Io the Heart Station. Because the cutrent system is perceived by many to be

' * unfair and probably illegal, the detision was made to establish an ad hec committee t0 propose
an alternative systent.
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[ h‘ave invited Gene Ireland, M.D, (Presidaat of the Medicsl i i

{Director of the Department of Mediciue), and you to artend theS ?i:?t' :::leﬁ::ge.l Jﬁulzf mi
some question ybout whether the responsibility and authority to assign roster readings betonps to
the administration or to the medical staf¥. I would roquest that a hospital anomey attend the
meeting 1o address the legal aspects of that matter and any other important legal issn:s related ¢
the assignment of roster reading time. One marter is clear. If the current system ig in fact i!lcga?

and we know that it is illegal, then it must be changed quickly.

129. As shown above, in the letter, Relator took issue with the assignment of
panel time in the Heart Station. He stated specifically in one part of the letter that “the
current system [of panel assignment] is perceived by many to be unfair and probably
illegal.”

130. Relator further indicated that he and others had established an “ad hoc
committee” to propose an alternative system. In the letter, Relator stated:

! would request that a hospital attorney attend the
meeting [of the ad hoc committee] to address the legal
aspects of the matter and any other important legal
issues related to the assignment of roster reading time.
One matter is clear. If the current system is in fact
illegal and we know that it is illegal, then it must be
changed quickly.

131. The letter was copied to a number of individuals, including the entire
Division of Cardiology at TCH.

132.  Upon receipt of the letter, Mr. Seim called Relator to his office at TCH to
discuss the letter. Mr. Seim and his assistant met Relator at Mr. Seim’s office.

133. Both Mr. Seim and his assistant were agitated and upset. At that meeting,
Relator saw that Mr. Seim had highlighted the portions of the letter regarding the
ilegality of the method of panel assignment. Mr. Seim and his assistant chastised
Relator for putting the concerns about the illegality of the method of panel assignment

in a written document. Mr. Seim accused Relator of “putting the hospital at risk” and
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stated that this was not the type of information that should be shared with the local
healthcare community.

134. Mr. Seim attended the next meeting of the ad hoc commitiee on January
10, 2000, at which time he denied stating that the present method of allocation was
illegal:

M) Siem remarket that he (o1t there wis msrepresenlation of the issue. One point af tsuc is the thc du‘:hs
el ks i Die cuneenl system proposed s Negal or nol and h:: is gommitted lncnplurmb the lepalny e

R DR TP P} ian? BHarareenllv and

135. As this shows, Mr. Seim stated that he did not know if the current system
was legal or illegal, and he indicated that he was committed to exploring the legality of
the system that was in place. Mr. Seim did not disclose that he had already been
advised by lawyers that the system was iliegal.

136. Mr. Seim indicated that TCH’s administration would not make any
decisions as to changing the method of panel allocation until March 31, 2000.

137. On April 11, 2000, Mr. Seim made a presentation to the Section of
Cardiology business meeting in which he announced that TCH would be soliciting
proposals for a party or group to take over the function of assigning panel time. He
indicated that TCH was doing this because physicians questioned the administration’s
decisions as to the methodology of allocation. Mr. Seim indicated that TCH would
continue to be responsible for the panel time altotment for the remainder of the year,
but that the responsibility for allotment of time would be turned over for the next year.

138. At the April 11, 2000 meeting, Mr. Seim distributed various handouts
related to the future request for proposals. One of the documents distributed was a

chart entitted Heart Station Reading Panel Allocation Recommendation {the “Chart”).
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139. The Chart compared features of the current system of panel allocation
and a possible alternative through the development of new criteria via the request for
proposal process. The Chart admitted that the current system of allocation undertaken
by TCH was “linked to physician hospital volume.”

140. This was the first time TCH admitted to the non-Ohio Heart members of
MDA that the current panel time allocation was based upon referrals to TCH. The
Chart contradicts Mr. Seim’s prior representation to Relator that he did not know how
panel time had been allocated in the past.

141. Seim’s chart is excerpted below:

Heart Station Reading Panel
Allocation Recommendation

Alterosthve i 1 Afternative § 2
Corusidenitions | contiae gresent ellucntion | Dewelod pancl :pur.lﬁmm.s
B nethod. and autsswrce vis BFP.
Asmarey panel coverege, \( \’
I Nol ked i phyiician bospiial vohm. ] \!

|Riloralizes penc!axwignmerd (@efendablex | | \[

| Promoles nctive madical sl siatas r

Allocasoa derived &nmi:ysmimmi;pm ‘j

]

Percepting of fairness, J "
Promates pliysician goliabarslion, ‘\J‘
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F. Defendants Conspire to Perpetrate the lilegal Kickback Scheme Using MDA

142, At a July 11, 2000 meeting of the Section of Cardiology, Mr. Seim
presented a draft Request for Proposal ("RFP”) for Heart Station Panel Coverage.
Seim continued to work on the draft with Broderick.

143. On August 1, 2000, Mr. Seim sent out the final RFP on behalf of TCH and
the Health Alliance. At Relator’'s suggestion, it was determined by the members of
MDA that MDA would respond to the request for proposals for allocation of panel time.
TCH and the Health Alliance agreed with this approach.

144, By the September 12, 2000 meeting of the Section of Cardiology, TCH
and the Health Alliance had received no responses to the RFP. At this meeting, Dr.
Abbottsmith indicated that MDA would submit a proposal.

145. The Ohio Heart physician members of MDA (primarily Broderick and
Abbottsmith) conspired with TCH and Health Alliance administrators (primarily Seim
and Weitholter) in the drafting of its proposal to ensure that Ohio Heart would control
MDA and maintain a majority of the panel time.

146. Although the purpose of the RFP purportedly was to end the illegal
kickback arrangement that governed panel time assignment, these Ohio Heart, TCH,
and Health Alliance officials decided to ensure that the same method of panel
assignment would be continued by MDA and dominated by Ohic Heart.

147. In this respect, Ohio Heart, using MDA, continued the same kickback
scheme already in place. Continuation of this practice would benefit Ohio Heart (which
benefited most from the scheme), TCH (which wished to preserve its illegal incentives

for referrals and please Ohio Heart, its largest source of income), and the Health
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Alliance (which also wished to maintain the largest source of income at its flagship
hospital).

148. On September 30, 2000, MDA submitted its proposal by letter from
Broderick. This proposal was the result of collusion between Ohio Heart, TCH, and the
Health Alliance.

149. While the proposal purported to consider a variety of factors for
assignment of panel time instead of basing assignment purely on referrals to TCH,
referrals to TCH remained the sole factor in the assignment of panel time. Pursuant to
the express terms of the proposal, Ohio Heart, through MDA, indicated it would base
panel time allocation on:

The depth of participation in hospital activities as reflected

by consultations, admissions, cardiac_surgery referrals,
invasive, and non-invasive procedures performed; past and

on-going service to the hospital in support of existing panel
structures; and participation in section governance activities
and medical education.

(Emphasis added.)

150. By its proposal through MDA, Ohio Heart intended for panel time
allocation to continue to be based exclusively on referrals to TCH. Despite the other
factors enumerated in the proposal, Ohio Heart, TCH, and the Health Alliance
understood that referrals to TCH would continue to be the lone criterion in determining
panel time allocation.

151. By November 15, 2000 letter to Broderick, Mr. Seim, on behalf of TCH
and the Health Alliance, accepted in principle the proposal submitted by MDA on

September 30, 2000.
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152. In the form of a December 18, 2000 letter, the Health Alliance, TCH, and
MDA—through Ohio Heart executive committee member Broderick—entered into a
formal agreement (the "Contract”) by which MDA would provide Heart Station panel
coverage for the two-year period beginning January 1, 2001 and ending December 31,
2002.

G. Defendants Continued to Conspire _and to Employ the Same IHegal
Kickback Scheme

153. Beginning with the inception of the Contract, Ohio Heart, through MDA,
continued the practice of rewarding physicians for referrals to TCH. The system for
panel allocation, based exclusively on referrals to TCH, continued unchanged through
the filing of the original complaint in this action.

154. Ohio Heart's agreement to continue this illegal practice was material to
the decision of TCH and the Health Alliance to enter into the Contract with MDA,

155. Each fall, TCH and the Health Alliance supplied to MDA a spreadsheet
showing the number of referrals from physicians to TCH for cardiac procedures (EKG’s
and caths) and coronary artery bypass graft surgery (CABG), as well as the amount of
gross charges per physician at TCH.

166. Specifically, Tina Wall, the Manager for the Heart Station and an
empioyee of TCH and the Health Alliance, submitted this referral and volume
information to MDA (Broderick) with the understanding that Ohio Heart, through MDA,
used this information as the criterion for disbursement of panel time.

157. Ohio Heart, through MDA, then distributed panel! time based upon this
referral data. Thus, if a physician increased the volume of procedures for TCH and the

Health Alliance, he was rewarded with additional Heart Station panel time.
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158, After Ohio Heart, through MDA, took the raw referral and volume numbers
and assigned percentages, Tina Wall created and issued schedules assigning
physicians panel time in the Heart Station.

159. On September 25, 2001, Dr. Broderick sent a letter to some MDA
physicians that expressly stated that panel time was going to be distributed according to
“CABG referrals and gross revenue to the hospital” according to “data from the

hospital.” He further stated that this criteria was “the same as in the years past.” The

letter reads:

Seplember 25, 2001

Dear Physicians.

thal you wete unable to attend the first mecting of MDA to sort trwough the
L;Tnﬁgzn Fnr{hc: Christ bospital heart station for the next year. This was |:mer‘c1y a
preliminary mectiog. 1am enclosing a copy of the first pass data from the hosginal. The
format is the satve as m the years past with CABG referrals and gross revemie o the
hospital being the two criteria. The hospital is making another run on the dsta from ,
January through Suly 2001 per our request. That won't be available for at Jeast a couple
of weeks. The next meeting will be scheduled for about one month from pow on &
Tuesday motping. 1 hope that you can attend.

Sincerely.
Tom Broderick

160. In December 2002, Ohio Heart (through MDA), TCH, and the Health
Alliance renewed the Contract, with the understanding that Ohio Heart, using MDA,
would continue to assign panel time in the same illegal manner.

161. Ohio Heart has continued to dominate MDA and therefore control the

system of allocation of panel time. Non-Ohio Heart members of MDA had no controi
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over the assignment of panel time and were frustrated with Ohio Heart's power and
influence with TCH and the Health Alliance. They remained silent for fear of retaliation.

162. In January 2002, Drs. Ivey and Mitts, the two primary cardiovascular
surgeons practicing at TCH, joined Ohio Heart. Ohio Heart then began referring
surgery patients to Drs. lvey and Mitts—ie., Ohio Heart itself—which, in tum, also
resulted in still more panel time for Ohio Heart in the Heart Station.

163. Thus, not only did TCH and the Health Alliance reward physicians with
panel time for referring to TCH, but Ohio Heart, using MDA, also rewarded physicians
with panel time for referring procedures directly to Ohio Heart.

164. Hanover, Seim, and other Health Alliance and TCH officials were tcld that
the method of assigning panel time violates the Anti-Kickback Statute, but they refused
to change the system.

165. Despite knowledge of this illegal conduct, TCH bowed to Ohio Heart’s
influence by continuing to reward Ohio Heart, not only with Heart Station panel time but
also by awarding leadership positions in TCH’s administration to Ohio Heart's most
prominent members. For instance, Broderick was named to The Christ Hospital
Executive Committee in 2005. Kereiakes was recently named Medical Director of The
Christ Hospital Heart and Vascular Center.

H. Defendants’ llieqal Scheme

166. As the foregoing demonstrates, the Health Alliance and TCH established
an illegal scheme whereby physicians were given lucrative panel time in TCH Heart

Station based upon their volume of referrals to other TCH services. Later, TCH and the

-37-




Health Alliance conspired with Ohio Heart to continue this scheme and further reward
physicians for their referrals to Ohio Heart.

167. The physicians to whom Defendants provided illegal remuneration and
kickbacks referred large volumes of patients, including Medicare and Medicaid patients
and beneficiaries of other Government healthcare programs, to TCH in violation of
federal law. Defendants, in turn, submitted claims to Medicare, Medicaid, and other
Government healthcare programs and obtained millions of dollars worth of payments
from the United States. Under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3728(a}(1), such
claims were false and/or fraudulent because Defendants had no entittement to payment
for services provided on referrals from such physicians.

168. Defendants also violated the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3728(a)(2), by
making or causing to be made false statements when submitting these claims for
payment to Medicare and other Government programs. Defendants falsely certified the
claims and statements were “true” andf/or “correct” and as such were entitled to
payment.

168. To conceal their unlawful conduct and aveid refunding payments made on
the false claims, Defendants also falsely certified, in violation of the False Claims Act,
31 U.S.C. § 3728(a)(7), that the services identified in their annual cost reports were
provided in compliance with federal law, including the prohibitions against kickbacks
and illegal remuneration to physicians. The false certifications, made with each annual
cost report submitted to the Government, were part of Defendants’ unlawful scheme to

defraud Medicare and other Government healthcare programs.
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170. Pursuant to the scheme, pattern, and practice described above, TCH and
the Heaith Alliance provided illegal remuneration, inducements, and kickbacks to
physicians, submitted false and fraudulent claims, and fraudulently obtained payments
from the United States on referrals by these physicians in violation of the Anti-Kickback
Statute and the False Claims Act.

171. Each and every Form CMS-1500, CMS-2552, and UB-92 (and each of
their former incarnations) submitted by Defendants for Heart Station procedures, since
1993 and continuing through the filing of the original complaint, was a false claim,
statement, or record. During this time, Defendants submitted tens of thousands of
these forms to the Government.

172. The United States was damaged because of the acts of Defendants in
submitting, causing to be submitted, or conspiring to submit false claims, statements
and records in that it paid TCH, the Health Alliance, and Ohio Heart for items and
services for which they were not entitled to reimbursement.

173. Defendants profited unlawfully from the payment of illegal remuneration
and kickbacks to physicians.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(False Claims Act: Presentation of False Claims)
(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(1))

174. Relator repeats and realleges the preceding allegations as if fully set forth
herein.

175. Defendants knowingly presented or caused to be presenied false or
fraudulent claims for payment or approval to the United States, including claims for

reimbursement for services rendered to patients unlawfully referred to TCH facilities by
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physicians to whom Defendants provided kickbacks and/or illegal remuneration in
violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute.

176. By virtue of the false or fraudulent claims made by the Defendants, the
United States suffered damages and therefore is entitled to multiple damages under the
False Claims Act, to be determined at trial, plus a civil penalty of $5,500 to $11,000 for
each violation.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(False Claims Act: Making or Using False Record or Statement
to Cause Claim to be Paid)
{31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(2))

177. Relator repeats and realleges the preceding allegations as if fully set forth
herein.

178. Defendants knowingly made, used, or caused to be made or used, false
records or statements — ie., the false certifications and representations made or
caused to be made by Defendants when initially submitting the false claims for interim
payments and the false certifications made or caused to be made by Defendants in
submitting the cost reports - to get false or fraudulent claims paid or approved by the
United States.

179. By virtue of the false records or false statements made by the
Defendants, the United States suffered damages and therefore is entitled to treble
damages under the False Claims Act, to be determined at trial, plus a civil penalty of

$5,500 to $11,000 for each violation.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(False Claims Act; Making or Using False Record or Statement to Avoid an Obligation
to Refund)
(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(7))

180. Relator repeats and realleges the preceding allegations as if fully set forth
herein.

181. Defendants knowingly made, used or caused to be made or used false
records or false statements ~ i.e., the false certifications made or caused to be made by
Defendants in submiiting the cost reports — to conceal, avoid or decrease an obligation
to pay or transmit money or property to the United States.

182. By virtue of the false records or false statements made by the
Defendants, the United States suffered damages and therefore is entitled to treble
damages under the False Claims Act, to be determined at trial, plus a civil penaity of
$5,500 to $11,000 for each violation.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
{False Claims Act; Conspiring to Submit False Claims)
(31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(3))

183. Relator repeats and realleges the preceding allegations as if fully set forth
herein.

184. Defendants entered into agreements with certain physicians and each
other and conspired to defraud the United States by submitting false or fraudulent
claims for reimbursement from the United States for monies to which they were not
entitled, in violation of 31 U.S.C. § 3729(a)(3).

185. As part of schemes and agreements to obtain reimbursement from the

United States in violation of federal laws, Defendants conspired to provide kickbacks

and illegal compensation to physicians in violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute, and to
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cause the United States to pay claims for health care services based on false claims
and false statements that the services were provided in compliance with all laws
regarding the provision of health care services when they were not so provided.

186. By virtue of Defendants’ conspiracy to defraud the United States, the
United States suffered damages and therefore is entitled to treble damages under the
False Claims Act, to be determined at trial, plus a civil penalty of $5,500 to $11,000 for
each violation.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Relator, on behalf of the United States Government, prays:

a) That this Court enter judgment against Defendants in an amount
equal to three times the amount of actual damages the United States Government has
sustained because of Defendants’ actions, plus a civil penalty of $5,500 to $11,000 for
each action in violation of 31 U.8.C. § 3729, and the costs of this action, with interest,
including the costs of the United States for its expenses related to this action;

b) That the Relator be awarded all costs incurred, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees;

c) That, in the event that the United States Government takes over
this action, the Relator be awarded an amount for bringing this action of at least 15%
but not more than 25% of the proceeds of the action or settlement of the claim;

d) That, in the event the United States does not proceed with this
action, the Relator be awarded an amount that the Court decides is reasonable for
collecting the civil penalty and damages, which shall not be less than 25% nor more

than 30% of the proceeds of the action or the settlement;
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e) That the Relator be awarded prejudgment interest,
f) That a trial by jury be held on all issues; and
g) That the United States Government and Relator receive all relief,

both in law and in equity, to which they may reasonably appear entitled.

s/Glenn V. Whitaker

Glenn V. Whitaker (0018169)

VORYS, SATER, SEYMOUR AND PEASE LLP
Suite 2000, Atrium Two

221 E. Fourth Street

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Telephone: (513) 723-4000

Facsimile: (513) 723-4056
gvwhitaker@vssp.com

Trial Attorney for Relator Harry F. Fry, M.D.

JURY DEMAND

Piaintiffs demand a trial by jury on all issues so triable herein.

s/ Glenn V. Whitaker
Glenn V. Whitaker
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